
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Regional Planning Commission 
Kingston Springs, Tennessee 

 
11 April, 2024 

Meeting Packet 
 
 



 



 
 

Kingston Springs Regional Planning Commission  

Meeting Agenda 

11 April 2024 

1 
 

 
 
 

 

The meeting was called to order by _____________________at _____________pm. 

 

1. Roll Call of Voting Members: 
 

Keith Allgood   ______ 

Tony Thompson     ______ 

Tony Gross     ______ 

Mike Hargis   ______ 

Lauren Hill   ______ 

Mike Patenaude   ______ 

Craig Kitch   ______ 

Marie Spafford   ______ 

Bob Stohler   ______ 
 

2. Non-Voting Staff: 
 

Sharon Armstrong, Planner ______ 

Peter Chimera, P.E.                      ______ (Attends at Request of Planning Commission) 
 

3. Ex Officio Attendance:    
 

John Lawless, City Manager      ______ 

Attorney                                        ______ (Attends at request of Planning Commission) 
  

4. Declaration of Quorum by Chairperson. 

 

5. Motion to approve 14 March 2024, Planning Commission meeting minutes. 

 

6. Motion to approve 11 April 2024 Planning Commission meeting agenda. 
 

7. Community Input 
 

Public Comments shall be:  

a.    limited to three (3) minutes for all regular agenda items and items removed from the 

Agenda and an overall time limit for all comments on an agenda item to ten (10) minutes 

unless extended by vote of a majority of the Planning Commission 

 

Submittal Deadline Date:  13 March, 2024 



 



 

2 
 

b.    The Chairman shall limit comments to the Agenda items, to relevant comments and shall 

restrict comments that are disruptive in nature. 
 

8. Declaration of Conflict(s) 

 

In the event that any member shall have a personal interest of any kind in a matter then 

before the Kingston Springs Municipal-Regional Planning Commission, she/he shall disclose 

his/her interest. Conflict of Interest is defined in the Kingston Springs Municipal Code Title 

1, Chapter 4, Section 1-402 through Section 1-404. 
 

9. Old Business: 

 

A. Ellersly PUD – Consideration of Approval of Amended Grading Plans 

 

 

B. GCTN – Update on Maintenance Facility Proposed Site Plan, Performance Bond 

Requirements for construction damage to South Harpeth Rd, to CC Rd. within the 

city limits of the Town of Kingston Springs 

a. Soil and Erosion issues reported by Mimi Rose 

b. Consideration of approval of Performance Bond for repairs to South 

Harpeth Rd.  

 

 

C. Discussion of Sidewalks from the Ellersly PUD to Downtown Kingston Springs – 

Update. 

 

 

D. Roy B McPherson  - The Willows, 129 E. Kingston Springs Rd., Core Drill update 

 

 

 

10. New Business: Recommendations by the Town of Kingston Springs City Commission 

 

A. Requested Rezone for the property located at 795 South Harpeth Rd., Map 100, 

Parcel 011.00 from Agricultural District to R1 Low Density Residential District for 

the purpose of subdividing the property. Property located in FEMA NFIP X 

Zone.Recommendation by the KS Regional Planning Commission - Concept Review 

Application, property at located 173 Luyben Hills Rd. regarding proposed from C-2 

Highway Commercial District to I-1 Light Industrial District. 

 

 

 

11. Discussion – McPherson Property 

a. Discussion of Core Drill and Letter sent by Mr. McPherson (No vote or formal 

action can be taken by the Planning Commission as the letter was not received in 

time to advertise the request of the applicant. 

 

 
 



 



 

3 
 

12. Motion to Adjourn. 
 

 

The meeting was adjourned by __________________________at _________pm. 

 

 

 

 

      ___________________________                   __________________________________ 

Lauren Hill              Jamie Dupré 

Planning Commission Chair        City Recorder 



 
 

Kingston Springs Regional Planning Commission  

Meeting Minutes 

14 March 2024 

1 
 

 
 
 

 

 

The meeting was called to order by Chair Lauren Hill at 7:00 pm. 

 

 

1. Roll Call of Voting Members: 
 

Keith Allgood   Absent 

Tony Thompson     Absent 

Tony Gross     Present 

Mike Hargis   Present 

Lauren Hill   Present 

Mike Patenaude   Present 

Craig Kitch   Absent 

Marie Spafford   Present 

Bob Stohler   Absent 
 

2. Non-Voting Staff: 
 

Sharon Armstrong, Planner Present 

Peter Chimera, P.E.                      Absent (Attends at Request of Planning Commission) 
 

3. Ex Officio Attendance:    
 

John Lawless, City Manager      Present 

Attorney Tim Potter  Absent (Attends at request of Planning Commission) 
  

4. Declaration of Quorum by Chairperson. 
Chair Hill declared a quorum. 

 

5. Motion to approve 9 February, 2024, Planning Commission meeting minutes. 
Motion to approve 9 February, 2024, Planning Commission meeting minutes made by Mike 

Patenaude, with a second by Mike Hargis. Motion passed. 

 

6. Motion to approve 14 March, 2024 Planning Commission meeting agenda. 
Motion to approve 14 March, 2024, Planning Commission meeting agenda made by Mike 

Patenaude, with a second by Marie Spafford. Motion passed. 

 

 

Submittal Deadline Date:  February 9, 2024 



 

2 
 

7. Community Input 
 

Public Comments shall be:  

a.    limited to three (3) minutes for all regular agenda items and items removed from the 

Agenda and an overall time limit for all comments on an agenda item to ten (10) minutes 

unless extended by vote of a majority of the Planning Commission 

b.    The Chairman shall limit comments to the Agenda items, to relevant comments and shall 

restrict comments that are disruptive in nature. 
 

8. Declaration of Conflict(s) 

 

In the event that any member shall have a personal interest of any kind in a matter then 

before the Kingston Springs Municipal-Regional Planning Commission, she/he shall disclose 

his/her interest. Conflict of Interest is defined in the Kingston Springs Municipal Code Title 

1, Chapter 4, Section 1-402 through Section 1-404. 
 

9. Old Business: 

 

A. Ellersly PUD – Update 

City Planner Armstrong said they received plans with improvements for drainage, but 

they came in too late to get them on the agenda to advertise, so will be on the agenda for 

next month. Armstrong said the Planning Commission had voted to allow staff to 

approve them so that the project can move forward before the heavy rain and wouldn’t 

increase the issues on site. That occurred, and they will be brought before the Planning 

Commission for formal approval. The work continues. There have been some complaints 

on a couple of builds in progress of trash that’s going off site. Armstrong will share that 

with the code enforcement officer so that we can address that in the future. 

 

B. GCTN – Update on Maintenance Facility Proposed Site Plan, Performance Bond 

Requirements for construction damage to South Harpeth Rd, to CC Rd. within the 

city limits of the Town of Kingston Springs 

a. Soil and Erosion issues reported by Mimi Rose  

City Planner Armstrong said there was a complaint by one of the residents who 

lives adjacent to the Golf Club that there was a recent very heavy rain several 

weeks ago and water did displace dirt into the creek. It did make it across the 

road at the four-pipe area. Armstrong directed Ms. Rose to contact TDEC and 

Cheatham County since it is in their jurisdiction, and Armstrong noted that to the 

Golf Club of DBI. She spoke to Mr. Hooper, the engineer for the project. He 

relayed that they had traced the entire soil erosion in that area all the way to the 

top of the hill but could not find the exact location of the breach. The soil erosion 

experts seem to think the water was just so intense for several hours that it 

overwhelmed the catchments they had in place. Armstrong asked them to share 

the EPSC for the previous month so to give city staff  a little more insight into 

what’s going on at the site. It appears to be corrected now. The complainant was 

a somewhat alarmed by the event. As discussed previously, that is enforced by 

TDEC. It’s their permit. All we can do in note and follow-up.  

 

Armstrong added that they had a discussion with the Golf Club of TN about the 

location of its maintenance facility briefly to update the Planning Commission 



 

3 
 

that was deferred several months back because they needed to work through an 

easement agreement between the Golf Club of TN and the Priscilla Dorris 

Property Trust. They presented a site plan for the project which was tabled 

because the easement agreement has to be in place before that can be considered. 

Since the bridge has been replaced, they are no longer taking the detour. They are 

taking the city section of the road out to CC Road. They had a positive discussion 

with them. The Town will provide them with a performance bond. The paving 

contractor for the city will calculate the cost per linear foot and then a 

performance bond will be put in place for the construction phase of the project 

from the exit of the maintenance facility where the gravel road exists now, all the 

way to CC Road. That will be put in place for the construction phase. When the 

site plan comes off the table and back to the Planning Commission, there will be 

some road improvements that will be required by our ordinance of that location. 

The road width in that location is slightly under 17 feet, so when you are turning 

out a dump truck or a large vehicle, you can’t stay on the road surface, and 

they’re going into the ditch line on the other side of the road, and because that 

has never been a formed driveway, it's just graveled in, it’s compromising both 

ditches, which in turn compromises flow of water going down the road. Given 

the location and the number of cars coming in and out of there, they have 65 

parking spaces on that plan for the maintenance facility and an office space there 

as well. Armstrong, Engineer Peter Chimera, and City Manager Lawless are 

going to meet with their engineer to discuss what improvements may need to be 

made so that it is no longer an issue for the road. This will only be for the Town’s 

portion of South Harpeth Road. Armstrong said it was her understanding that the 

performance bond placed with the county has been satisfied, and the county is 

making some improvements in the four-pipe area. Armstrong said they were 

putting in some culvert improvements in the four-pipe area on the county side. 

 

C. Discussion of Sidewalks from the Ellersly PUD to Downtown Kingston Springs – 

Update. 

City Planner Armstrong said the City Commission recommended to the Planning 

Commission to explore having sidewalks come from the Ellersly PUD to downtown. 

Most of the residents are taking a pathway where Phase I ends and through the condos to 

go downtown and come out by Turnbull Provisions. The other possible route was along 

West Kingston Springs Road. There were safety concerns coming that way, plus the 

town would have to acquire the right-of-way across those properties, which could be 

prohibitively expensive. Staff had a conversation with the folks at Ellersly and they are 

amenable to allowing a sidewalk to come off that project in the rear location. Armstrong 

has emailed the HOA representative for the condos next door, which would be the 

natural connection because they have sidewalks in front of their buildings. The HOA 

representative is going to schedule a meeting with the board to discuss it. If that step 

progresses, then staff will have a discussion with Carl Francis regarding the rental house 

in the turn that will get us from the condos all the way to the sidewalk on the side of the 

commercial complex at Turnbull Provisions, and will bring the residents out in an area 

that is much safer than traveling on West Kingston Springs Road. 

 

 



 

4 
 

D. Discussion of revision to the Zoning Ordinance, Article 3.100 Accessory Uses 

Update. 

City Planner Armstrong said she is still trying to flesh out all of the impacts that the 

change would have. The accessory use regulations impact the zoning ordinance in more 

than 31 separate places. As we work through trying to figure out a way to allow more 

use, we then bump up against not only the other sections of the zoning ordinance where 

there are limitations on lot coverage and all sorts of other things, and as we try to work 

through the HOA or covenants of restrictions for several subdivisions that lie within 

these zoning districts, we can’t write anything that minimizes the covenants and 

restrictions that are privately placed. We have to look at lot coverage, and not all lots are 

same size, so doing it on a percentage level becomes cumbersome and, in some cases, if 

we increase the percentage that you can use based on the zoning district that you are in, 

it bumps up against the lot coverage restrictions that people buy those lots for, and in 

some cases, it bumps up against covenants and restrictions. We can’t write anything that 

allows something that an HOA prohibits. Courts have ruled that whichever is more 

stringent applies. We can’t undermine their covenants and restrictions with something 

that would allow or bar use that they allow. Armstrong is trying to wrangle all of this 

language to make sure that it’s seamless when it goes in and one section of the ordinance 

doesn’t contradict the other. While we don’t enforce HOA restrictions, we can’t violate 

them. We can’t issue a permit that contradicts them. Mike Hargis asked for confirmation 

on where a subdivision that doesn’t have an HOA, that the ordinance rules apply, and 

that was correct. Armstrong said as we work with lot coverage in the districts. The larger 

the lot, the less intense the district. R1A is the least intense district. The less intense it is, 

the greater the restriction on lot coverage because people buy those lots with the 

understanding that they’re only allowed to use 25% of that lot for coverage. Hill and 

Gross asked, do we try to do a one size fits all or do we change the current code or leave 

it. Armstrong said as we work through the districts, we are going to bump up against lot 

coverage is almost every circumstance. Mike Hargis thought increasing by percentage 

would work, because not every lot is same size, so they would be limited by lot size. 

Armstrong said you can’t provide something to some people in a district that would not 

be available to other people in the district. Hargis said it would be the same issue no 

matter where you set the bar, at 50%, or 60%. He did not see a problem with increasing 

the accessory amount if people have a lot big enough to accommodate it. You can’t 

provide an advantage to one that doesn’t apply to others. Armstrong said it had to be 

level across the district. Armstrong said it is not impossible, but when you write it, it has 

to be able to withstand the challenges. Hill asked if it was necessary. Is it really going to 

impact things going forward. Mike Patenaude said the accessory use, whether it is 50%, 

60% or 75%, is still subject to other restrictions, whether it’s septic or setbacks. He said 

if these restrictions don’t come into play, then this is acceptable if it’s in the ordinance. 

He said it shouldn’t be an issue. Accessory use can be at 50% or 60%, subject to sewage, 

subject to lot coverage. As long as you can meet your sewage and setbacks, and you can 

meet lot coverage, then it applies. Armstrong said she thinks we will bump up against 

complaints. People buy in certain districts and expect to have a certain distance on that 

lot between them and anything else that can be built when they buy that lot. On the 

larger zoning districts, it probably isn’t an issue, but in the smaller zoning districts you 

are going to get blowback. It can’t be just R1 and R1A. The others are too difficult to 

work around because most small lots are on sewer. You have a sewer tank, driveway, 

setbacks. Tony Gross said we haven’t had any cases in the R1 and R1A, so we are really 



 

5 
 

talking about an R2 issue, and that can’t be resolved. Armstrong said R1 and R1A you 

could allow that increase across those lots. There’s a random lot here or there that would 

not comply in those districts. Tony Gross said this whole process sounds like a solution 

in search of a problem. He did not know that the problem exists within the current 

zoning. Armstrong said that the complaints that we’ve had are pretty much limitations 

that regardless of what we change, will still not address the issue. Armstrong said 

accessory use has to be subordinate to the principal use of the lot. For residential, the 

primary use is defined by law as the principal structure. Everything that comes on that 

lot after the principal structure has to be subordinate in use and in size. Hill asked why 

they were moving forward with this constant discussion, if they were in fact, a solution 

searching for a problem. Armstrong said there are two reasons. One that it was 

forwarded to the Planning Commission by the City Commission, so it can’t be just 

tabled, and two, the Planning Commission makes these decisions. Armstrong said she 

works at the direction of the Planning Commission to provide what they think is 

appropriate. Tony Gross said he thought this might not be a valuable use of staff hours. 

Hill agreed. Hill asked for a vote to see if they should continue to pursue. Tony Gross 

made a motion to no longer pursue this, with a second from Mike Patenaude. There was 

a brief discussion. The Planning Commission was asked to explore the issue and bring 

back to the City Commission the results of that exploration, and the Planning 

Commission’s decision. Hill said the discussion needed to occur. Marie Spafford said 

the City Commission asked the Planning Commission to explore it. They did, and 

discussed it and there’s no problem. Motion passed unanimously. 

 

E. Roy B McPherson - The Willows, 129 E. Kingston Springs Rd., Core Drill update 

City Planner Armstrong provided an update. She received notice from the engineering 

firm, GeoTech Engineering, from six weeks ago that core drilling was completed and 

report was rendered and given to Mr. McPherson. The Planning Commission hasn’t 

received it. She has requested that they forward it to the Planning Commission, so that 

they can review it. At this point the Planning Commission approved the core drilling 

locations. The lab report was to be produced. That was completed and finished six weeks 

ago, and applicant has chosen not to share it with the Planning Commission thus far. 

Armstrong made another request that the information be provided to the Planning 

Commission, reminding them that it was a requirement rather than a request. Tony Gross 

said as a review, last month they voted not to renew the PUD plan for this project, and of 

course they still need the core drill update and that data. He asked where they stood with 

this right now – no response from the applicant? Armstrong said she has not spoken 

directly with Mr. McPherson. She has been in communication with the engineer. She 

will follow up again and request that information. Mr. McPherson has not granted the 

engineering firm permission to release it to her, so she can’t get it from them. What 

comes next is the question. This is now purely depending on what’s determined in that 

report. If the report is good, then there’s not anything there we need to worry about 

going into our water stream; the ground is stable, and we’re not subject to the whole 

back of the hill falling off. If that is the case, the permit is closed and everything is 

stopped where we are. If that is not the case, it becomes an enforcement action, much as 

it did the first time. Tony Gross asked if that lot needs to be returned to something 

besides a dirt spot. Armstrong said that will be one of the requirements of enforcement, 

that it be flat graded and cleaned out. The downside to where we are with this project is, 

as you know, Ms. Down’s access to her property lies through that construction road on 



 

6 
 

that property, and if that is locked, then it’s going to have to be unlocked because Mr. 

McPherson can’t deny her access to her property through there. There have been a 

number of allegations over the gate being opened by people and the horse getting and 

some other things occurring. For the Planning Commission, it is simply a matter of 

saying you can’t close that exit/entrance. It cannot be blocked. The ground has to be 

returned to somewhat of a flat state and all the debris that is not necessary is removed 

and soil erosion addressed. 

 

10. New Business: Recommendations by the Town of Kingston Springs City Commission 

 

A. Knobel Signs - 121B Luyben Hills Rd. Considerations of Signage recommendation 

of the KS Design Review Committee to the KS Regional Planning Commission. 

1. Recess for the Design Review Committee Recommendation on Signage – 

121B Luyben Hills Rd. 

Motion to recess so that the Design Review Committee, which is the Planning 

Committee, can consider the recommendation on the signage made by Mike 

Patenaude, with a second by Mike Hargis. Motion passed.  Meeting recessed at 

7:38 pm. 

 

2. Reconvene to consider recommendation of the Design Review Committee 

Recommendation on Signage – 121B Luyben Hills Rd. 

Planning Commission reconvened at 7:41 to consider recommendation of the 

Design Review Committee Recommendation on Signage – 121B Luyben Hills 

Road. 

 

Tony Gross made the motion that the Planning Commission accept the 

recommendation of the Design Review Committee to approve signage at 121B 

Luyben Hills Road, with a second by Mike Patenaude. Motion passed. 

 

 

B. Recommendation by the KS Regional Planning Commission - Concept Review 

Application, property at located 173 Luyben Hills Rd. regarding proposed from C-2 

Highway Commercial District to I-1 Light Industrial District. 

City Planner Armstrong said Mr. Chris Collins filed the application on behalf of the 

Buchanan Trust. Armstrong said 173 Luyben Hills Road is the 3-acre lot by the Box 

Factory that was the subject of a concept review discussion last month for landscaping, 

mulching, delivery service. Armstrong said she and Mr. Collins have spoken at length 

about plans, though he is not the owner of the property. Armstrong spoke with the Real 

Estate Agent Amanda Bell last week. The proposal is to have a number of flex spaces, 

buildings on this lot, and have whatever that business is such as furniture maker and sign 

maker in the front and the smaller portion of building in rear will be a kind of warehouse 

or place where they would put their product until they delivered them. Armstrong said 

under the current C-2 we allow those activities as long as the warehouse space is 

subordinate both is size and use to the commercial space. Mr. Collins has asked if the 

property could be rezoned to I-1. For the same reasons discussed in the past when these 

proposals have come up in the C-2 Zone, there is a limited amount of commercial space 

in town. Rezoning to I-1, regardless of the plan that’s currently on the table, you open up 

the district to every industrial use within zone. Some of those uses are quite intense. None 



 

7 
 

of the lots or locations in this area can accommodate the traffic, the footprint, the 

infrastructure, or uses, in some cases. Armstrong advised Mr. Collins of that, but he still 

wanted to come and talk to the Planning Commission about rezoning it industrial. 

Armstrong’s recommendation was that the use that he’s proposing as described is 

perfectly doable within the C-2 zone, without increasing the intensity of the use in that 

area. Industrial, as you know, some uses have traffic issues and infrastructure issues, and 

it would be very difficult to absorb along that corridor. That’s the staff recommendation. 

Tony Gross asked Mr. Collins what he thought the advantage to zoning industrial. Collins 

said that 90% of these commercial flex spaces that are being developed fall under 

industrial use because of the warehouse size and the parking. Armstrong said parking 

intensity is based on use, not zone district. They define all of the uses throughout the 

zoning ordinance, whether residential, school, whatever it is, based on the particular use 

at the time of application is filed for development there. The downside of this is for 

someone who buys this 3-acre lot is our lot coverage restriction in the industrial areas is 

50%. If you take a 3-acre tract, it’s just been reduced to its usable space to an acre and a 

half. She was asked about commercial lot usage. Lot coverage usage for commercial is 

not restricted, as long as you are not offensive to your neighbor and stay on your own lot 

– you are wall to wall. There is very little restriction in C-2. Rezoning to I-1 reduces the 

usability of the lot by 50%, which from an economic standpoint doesn’t make a lot of 

sense; it doesn’t maximize the use of the lot to accommodate that. The intensity isn’t the 

only question. If you’re talking about a business flex space or commercial flex space, that 

doesn’t come with heavy industrial use, it doesn’t come with heavy waste. The intensity 

of the use is the reason why this corridor is not zoned industrial. The box plant existed 

before the zoning layer was done. It was there before so it’s grandfathered, and in this 

particular case, the intensity, regardless of what’s proposed. Once you zone it, it is open 

to everything in the industrial zone, and some of those uses are not congruent with that 

area. Collins said industrial was his first choice because it’s easier to find tenants. He said 

the building will be sectioned off at 2000 SF. There would be 3-400 SF of office space 

when you walk in, bathroom, and the rest of the space would be open for whatever the 

case might be, whether workshop, display area, whatever the case. Some of the tenants 

would skilled trades, event centers, studios – a blank canvas. If that is doable on the 

commercial space with that zone, then he would be happy to proceed down that road. In 

his past experience, it usually falls under industrial. Tony Gross said Tyler Technologies 

is located in a commercial lot. They are doing light manufacturing. Armstrong said the 

resistance to industrial is that once the lot is zoned industrial it opens the district to every 

single use, and some of those uses are very intense and they are not to be adjacent to 

residential or adjacent to commercial. There are barriers. Traffic is pretty much at 

saturation level with no potential to widen the road. There are a number of people in 

relatively large subdivisions that live on the other side of the overpass. We are always 

concerned about emergency services provision because that would force them to drive a 

long way around in the event of a fire or medical emergency, so that occurs to them for 

traffic. Armstrong said the other thing is the number of uses under industrial that cause an 

impact to environment. This is a very water saturated area. There are blue line streams 

everywhere. The area where C-2 is located now, just across the road is adjacent to the 

river. It’s in the pathway that the buildings that were lifted from their foundations took to 

the river during the flood. All of that means that whatever occurs there in a heavy rain or 

flood, with all the blue line saturation underneath the ground, migrates into the ground 

that goes into the river, from where drinking water comes and the water that goes into the 



 

8 
 

river the more costly it is to treat. You have to worry about the sewage issues which are 

done in step tanks which are located on every single lot that tie into the main in the event 

of heavy saturation or some chemical use that’s more costly to treat. It also limits the use 

of that lot to 50% which means if you had a use as the ones described, there would be 

insufficient lot space to accommodate the parking, the step tanks that are going to be 

required for each building, access in and out of driveways. Those types of things take up 

room on a lot. It would be limited to a very small footprint by the time you actually got to 

the building. Collins said for the square footage, the idea was to do it in phases, but the 

number he was going for would hit that 50% mark. Armstrong said she did not disagree 

with him with his concept. She clarified with him that it would be a 2,000 SF building 

with 25% of that being the actual office, and then there would be a workshop and maybe 

residual warehouse space in the back. Collins said it would be up to each tenant. It would 

be roughly, the smallest space available would be the 2000 SF; 3-400 SF office. Tony 

Gross said it sounds like he might be able to accomplish it in the current zoning and 

actually get more use out of the property. Collins said he’s heard this type of 

development called a business park or office warehousing. Mike Hargis said he may be 

thinking about his tenants in terms of they are more industrial than they are retail. It will 

probably fit under C-2, and you have the opportunity to use the other acre and a half in 

case it goes well and you want to expand it. Hargis thought he could do C-2 and be happy 

with the available tenants that are out there. Collins asked if it were left at C-2, what 

kinds of things would the Planning Commission like to see from him. Would he need a 

traffic study? Are there any big issues or red flags? Armstrong said that what they do for 

people pursuing development in that area is provide them with copies of the traffic 

studies that have already been done because we want that information as it moves from 

one study to the next study to be consistent and want it included. We don’t want you to 

just study the traffic on your lot, we want to know what that impact is on the corridor 

grid, so you are provided with that information. You are also provided with a TPR that 

was conducted by the state during the 2019 and adopted at the end of that year, because 

there were things that needed to be included for alternate traffic patterns for what happens 

in this area when there’s a wreck and gridlock. Their considerations are public safety 

first. That would be done when you actually put pen to paper and say here’s what I want 

to build and where the step tank will go and parking. Parking is based on use; it is not 

dictated by zone. Kingston Springs requires 10x20 parking spaces. Other considerations 

are sewer capacity and water capacity. Sometimes the use predicts how much water and 

sewage treatment are going to be required Some types of businesses are very water 

consumptive, and that creates runoff and stormwater and wastewater, which has to be 

treated at the owner’s expense. Armstrong spoke about the next thing the Planning 

Commission needs to see from Collins. He can’t present an actual plan unless he owns 

the property. Collins said he doesn’t feel comfortable buying the property unless he gets a 

plan approved. Armstrong said he could bring a preliminary plan to the Planning 

Commission They’re good at giving feedback on everything.  Collins asked if he 

presented a site plan, the final approval won’t be given until he owns the property. 

Armstrong said they would need a legal document from the present owner. The Planning 

Commission cannot approve plans, entertain rezoning, anything that affects a piece of 

property, without owner consent. He will need to have to have something from the owner 

that grants him that authority to appear, just as they give to their engineer or architect 

when they come here. He needs to have that consent. Mike Hargis wanted to make sure 

that Mr. Collins knew they appreciated his interest in investing in the community. He said 



 

9 
 

Mr. Collins needed to work with his attorney and architect to draw the plans, and talk 

with the property owner on a purchase option document, giving you the right to buy it 

assuming the plans are approved. Armstrong said he did not have to go that far. These are 

standard real estate documents. The seller’s real estate agent, Amanda Bell, is completely 

proficient on how to do these agreements. It simply allows you to purchase if they 

approve your plan going forward. It allows you an escape clause if they don’t. Collins 

said that is the kind of contract he has now, contingent on approval. No further questions 

of Mr. Collins. 

 
 

12. Motion to Adjourn. 
Motion to adjourn made by Tony Gross, with a second by Mike Hargis. Motion passed, and 

the meeting was adjourned by Chair Hill at 8:05 pm. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

      ___________________________                   __________________________________ 

Lauren Hill              Jamie Dupré 

Planning Commission Chair         City Recorder 



© 2023 Microsoft Corporation © 2023 Maxar ©CNES (2023) Distribution Airbus DS 

SA

SA

W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W

OHE

OHE

O
H

E

OHE

OHE

OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

U
G

E
U

G
E

U
G

E
U

G
E

U
G

E

U
G

E
U

G
E

U
G

E
U

G
E

U
G

E

GGGGGGGGGG

SASASASASASASASA

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G

G G G G G G G G

O
H

E O
H

E

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

UGE UGE UGE UGE UGE UGE UGE UGE UGE UGE UGE UGE UGE UGE UGE UGE UGE

SA

SA

SA

SA

SA
SA

SA
SA

SA
SA

SA
SA

WEST    KINGSTON    SPRINGS    ROAD

510

504

512 514
516

510504 W
W

W
W

W W WW W W

w wwwww

<
<

<
<

<
<

<
<

<
<

<
<

<

<508
506

504

512

510

512

514

516

516

512

504

506

ST ST

506504

WEST    KINGSTON    SPRINGS    ROAD

EL
LE

R
SL

Y 
W

AY

REMOVE EXISTING 24" CMP &
INSTALL DOUBLE 24" RCP.
INVERTS TO MATCH EXISTING
CULVERT INVERTS AND PROVIDE POSITIVE
DRAINAGE FROM SOUTH TO NORTH.

HEADWALL WITH
WINGWALLS

TEMPORARY ROCK
CHECK DAM.

30 LF OF ROADWAY REPAIR.
CONTRACTOR TO MAKE CLEAN SAW CUT FOR

CULVERT INSTALLATION AND PROVIDE FULL DEPTH
SECTION WITHIN CULVERT AREA.

CONTRACTOR TO MILL & OVERLAY ENTIRE WIDTH
WITH A 2-IN TOPPING.

SEE DETAIL THIS SHEET

CONTRACTOR TO REESTABLISH
THE EXISTING DIVERSION BERM

TO SIMILAR CONFIGURATION
UPON COMPLETION OF WORK.
MAINTAIN "OVERFLOW" TO BE

12-INCHES BELOW ROAD HEIGHT

INSTALL VERTICAL
END WALL WITH NO
WINGS.  CONTRACTOR TO
REMAIN WITH THE EXISTING
RIGHT-OF-WAY

SINGLE INLET D2
TC: 511.0±
INV (i)=507.3
INV (o)=507.2

26 LF OF 24" RCP
AT 0.5%

12 LF OF 24" RCP
AT 0.5% SLOPE

SINGLE INLET D1
TC: 511.0±
INV (i)=507.0
INV (o)= 506.9

HEADWALL D0
WITH RIPRAP
STONE SIZE 8"
INV (o)=506.8

CONTRACTOR TO DIRECT
THIS DITCH FLOWS INTO
ROADSIDE DITCH

CONTRACTOR TO FILL
EXISTING HOLE WITH
FILL MATERIAL AND
COMPACT

TEMPORARY ROCK
CHECK DAM.

TEMPORARY INLET
PROTECTION

INSTALL TEMPORARY
ASPHALT DIVERSION
BERMS TO DIRECT
STORMWATER INTO
NEW INLETS

CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE
WITH THE WATER DISTRICT ON WATER
SERVICE CONFLICTS AND ADJUST WATER
SERVICES IF NECESSARY (TYP)

NOTE:
 CONTRACTOR TO SEED &

STRAW ALL DISTURBED AREAS

HEADWALL D3
INV (i)=507.4

14 LF OF 24" RCP
AT 0.5%

EXISTING CULVERT
AND INLET TO
REMAIN

BEGIN ROADSIDE DITCH
CONSTRUCTION.  SEE
DETAIL THIS SHEET

EXISTING HEADWALL
TO REMAIN

EXISTING HEADWALL
TO REMAIN

CONTRACTOR TO  LOWER
DITCH FLOWLINE TO
PROVIDE POSITIVE
DRAINAGE FROM
HEADWALL D0 AND THE
EXISTING HEADWALL. DO
NOT GRADE NEAR THE
WATER LINE.

STOP!!
EXISTING WATER LINE AND ALL

OTHER UTILITIES TO BE
PROTECTED AT ALL TIMES

RY

N E. E

CE

O
A

L V LA
 J

an
 2

4,
 2

02
4 

- 1
:3

1p
m

 T
:\C

AD
D

\2
01

9\
19

-0
12

-0
1\

C
AD

\C
iv

il\
C

ul
ve

rt 
C

D
s\

xr
ef

\C
20

0 
C

ul
ve

rt 
Pl

an
.d

w
g

SEAL

PROJECT NO.: 19-012-01
C2.00

ISSUE SET:

ISSUE DATE: 12-22-2023

DRAWN BY:
CHECKED BY:

EL
LE

R
SL

Y
W

es
t K

in
st

on
 S

pr
in

gs
 R

oa
d

Ki
ng

st
on

 S
pr

in
gs

, C
he

at
ha

m
 C

ou
nt

y,
 T

en
ne

ss
ee

REVISION HISTORY:
Rev. DateDescription

STORM IMPROVEMENTS

0
SCALE: 1"=20'

20 40

N

PLAN

SECTION A-A SECTION B-B

SINGLE CURB INLET DIVERSION SWALE

EXISTING SLOPE
TO REMAIN UNTOUCHED

W. KINGSTON SPRINGS RD

EXISTING
WATER LINE

PROPOSED SLOPE

EXISTING SLOPE

SEED & STRAW
ALL DISTURBED
AREAS

BEGIN  NEW 3:1 SLOPE AT TOE OF
EXISTING DITCH.  IF DITCH BOTTOM
IS LESS THAN ONE-FOOT THEN WIDEN

INTENT OF THIS DITCH IMPROVEMENT IS
TO WIDEN THE SOUTH SIDE OF THE
EXISTING DITCH WITHOUT IMPACTING THE
EXISTING WATER LINE.  CONTRACTOR TO
LAY BACK EXISTING DITCH SLOPE ALONG
THE SOUTH SIDE ONLY.

01/12/24CITY COMMENTS

SEE HATCHED AREA
ABOVE FOR EXACT
LOCATION

01/24/24CITY COMMENTS















APPLICATION FOR ZONE CHANGE 

The Cheatham County Department of Codes, Building Safety, and Land Use 

338 Frey St. / Ashland City, TN 37015 / (615) 792-7915 / Fax (615) 792-2040 / codes@cheathamcountytn.gov 

 
 

 

There will be a $5.00 ARCHIVE FEE charged for all applications 

 

Certified letters notifying adjoining property owners of the rezone request, including directly across the street, will be 

mailed by the Building & Codes Department and will be charged to the applicant at the current USPS rate for certified 

letters. 

 

Zone Change Application Fee is $120.00 plus the cost of certified letter notification. A public notification 
sign will be provided to the applicant and shall be posted and maintained on the property which is the 
subject of the proposed zoning district change for at least fifteen (15) days prior to the public hearing on 
the zoning boundary change and shall remain until final action of the County Commission or the 
application is withdrawn. 

NAME & ADDRESS OF PROPERTY OWNERS DATE RECEIVED:    

 
 Scott Michael Summers            

 795 South Harpeth Road Kingston Springs, TN 37082 
 

TELE:  615-815-9366  
 

 

EMAIL:   ssummers@mossyoakproperties.com  
 

**APPLICANT &/OR AUTHORIZED AGENT IS REQUIRED TO ATTEND MEETING** 

 

NAME & ADDRESS OF AUTHORIZED AGENT 
 

 

Chapdelaine and Associates Land Surveying   TELE:  615-799-8104  
 

      EMAIL:  surveying@chapsurveyor.com  
 

ROAD NAME: South Harpeth Road ZONE    
 

Map 100 Parcel 011.00 Acreage  20.22  

 
 

 

IS THE PROPERTY IN THE CHEATHAM COUNTY GROWTH PLAN?  No  

 

 

 

CURRENT ZONING Agricultural  PROPOSED ZONING  R1  

 

 

 

TO MY KNOWLEDGE, INFORMATION AND BELIEF, THE ABOVE INFORMATION IS CORRECT (FALSE STATEMENT 

HEREIN MAY BE GROUNDS FOR DISMISSAL AND/OR DEFERRAL OF THIS APPLICATION). 

 

 

 
 Zack Harvill 

APPLICANTS SIGNATURE 
 

 

Page 1 of 1 

mailto:codes@cheathamcountytn.gov


bbaker
Polygon

bbaker
Text Box
1 acre

bbaker
Polygon

bbaker
Polygon

bbaker
Polygon

bbaker
Polygon

bbaker
Polygon

bbaker
Text Box
1 acre

bbaker
Text Box
.41 acre to be sold

bbaker
Text Box
2.59 acres

bbaker
Text Box
15.22 acres to remain in GB

bbaker
Callout
Legal Description of ONLY this .41 acre portion per Our Survey of 2007  Ref# 3078



LIN
E

B
E

A
R

IN
G

D
ISTA

N
C

E
L1

N
 09°25'14" W

7.18'
L2

N
 22°05'46" W

21.02'
L3

N
 26°31'55" W

10.85'
L4

N
 06°12'38" E

26.74'
L5

S 22°09'38" E
20.98'

C
U

R
V

E
R

A
D

IU
S

A
R

C
 LE

N
G

TH
C

H
O

R
D

 LE
N

G
TH

C
H

O
R

D
 B

E
A

R
IN

G
D

E
LTA

 A
N

G
LE

C
1

863.06'
162.38'

162.14'
N

 16°45'45" W
10°46'48"

C
2

154.28'
92.44'

91.06'
N

 05°01'12" W
34°19'52"

C
3

179.01'
15.37'

15.37'
N

 17°55'06" E
4°55'12"

C
4

179.46'
25.48'

25.46'
S 18°05'04" E

8°08'06"
C

5
835.47'

155.66'
155.43'

S 16°49'23" E
10°40'30"

234

533.52

CCPC RLS 2351 5/8"

BIG M
OUTH BRANCH

SOUTH HARPETH RIVER

U

U

U

U

U

U

E
X

ISTIN
G

 12 "
W

ITN
E

SS IR
O

N
 PIN

"C
H

A
PD

E
LA

IN
E

"

M
O

N
A

 G
ILL

755 S H
A

R
PETH

 R
O

A
D

R
EC

O
R

D
 B

O
O

K
 491 PA

G
E 846 R

.O
.C

.C
.

PR
O

PER
TY

 M
A

P 100 PA
R

C
EL 3

SA
LEM

 FO
R

SY
TH

E
JU

D
ITH

 FO
R

SY
TH

E
925 S H

A
R

PETH
 R

O
A

D
R

EC
O

R
D

 B
O

O
K

 366 PA
G

E 102 R
.O

.C
.C

.
PR

O
PER

TY
 M

A
P 100 PA

R
C

EL 10.05

TH
E G

O
LF C

LU
B

 O
F O

F D
B

I, LLC
 S H

A
R

PETH
 R

O
A

D
R

EC
O

R
D

 B
O

O
K

 592 PA
G

E 850 R
.O

.C
.C

.
PR

O
PER

TY
 M

A
P 100 PA

R
C

EL 17

C
H

A
R

LES E. C
O

O
K

E
SU

SA
N

 H
. C

O
O

K
E

6608 A
N

D
ER

SO
N

 R
O

A
D

R
EC

O
R

D
 B

O
O

K
 407 PA

G
E 859 R

.O
.C

.C
.

PR
O

PER
TY

 M
A

P 100 PA
R

C
EL 4.01

P.O
.B

.
E

X
ISTIN

G
12 " W

ITN
E

SS
IR

O
N

 PIN
"C

H
A

PD
E

LA
IN

E
"

12 " IR
O

N
PIN

 SE
T

E
X

ISTIN
G

 12 "
W

ITN
E

SS IR
O

N
 PIN

"C
H

A
PD

E
LA

IN
E

"

12 " W
ITN

E
SS

IR
O

N
 PIN

SE
T IN

 R
O

C
K

E
X

ISTIN
G

 12 "
 IR

O
N

 PIN
R

LS # 2351"

℄

W

W

12 " W
ITN

E
SS

IR
O

N
 PIN

SE
T

12 " IR
O

N
 PIN

SE
T

12 " IR
O

N
 PIN

SE
T

12 " IR
O

N
PIN

S
SE

T

12 " IR
O

N
PIN
SE

T

E

12 " IR
O

N
PIN
SE

T

1' C
U

LV
E

R
T

EXISTING GRAVEL DRIVE

E
X

ISTIN
G

R
E

SID
E

N
C

E

E
X

ISTIN
G

SH
E

D
E

X
ISTIN

G
D

E
C

K

S 78°30'08" E
136.26'

(25.00')

(50.00')

L1

L2

C1

C2 C3

(24.86')
(26.44')

N 30°07'03" E48.75'
N 40°43'30" E
116.78'

L3

L4

L5 C4

C5

0.41 A
C

R
E

S
17,671 ft²

TW
O

 W
A

TE
R

M
E

TE
R

S

LO
T 1

1.00 A
C

R
E

S
43,560 Sq. Ft.

LO
T 2

1.00 A
C

R
E

S
43,560 Sq. Ft.

R
E

M
A

IN
D

E
R

15.00 A
C

R
E

S
653,595 Sq. Ft.

(N
O

T PA
R

T O
F TH

IS PLA
T)

S 10°30'46" W

291.12'

N
 77°55'32" W

163.85'

N 21°53'50" E103.97'

S 77°56'28" E
188.50'

S 14°01'09" W

202.39'

N
 79°36'18" W

230.12'

N 21°53'50" E103.97'

S 07°11'41" W
369.75'

263.26'

N
 80°55'24" W

194.76'

LO
T 3

2.21 A
C

R
E

S
96,267 Sq. Ft.

TR
A

C
T 1

19.21 A
C

R
E

S
836,983 ft²

SOUTH HARPETH ROAD

N 21°31'48" E118.92'

(111.26')

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

8''W

8''W

8''W

8''W

8
'
'
W

8
'
'
W

8

'
'
W

8

'
'
W

8

'
'
W

8''W

8

'
'
W

8

'
'
W

8

'
'
W

8

'
'
W

8

'
'
W

8

'
'
W

8

'
'
W

8

'
'
W

8

'
'
W

8

'
'
W

8

'
'
W

8

'
'
W

8

'
'
W

8

'
'
W

8

'
'
W

8

'
'
W

8

'
'
W

N
:632020.98

E
:1651892.35

E
X

ISTIN
G

 12 "
W

ITN
E

SS IR
O

N
 PIN

"C
H

A
PD

E
LA

IN
E

"
N

:632029.27
E

:1651840.14

136.26' TO
TA

L

FENCE

(110.21')

TH
E G

O
LF C

LU
B

 O
F O

F D
B

I, LLC
 S H

A
R

PETH
 R

O
A

D
R

EC
O

R
D

 B
O

O
K

 592 PA
G

E 850 R
.O

.C
.C

.
PR

O
PER

TY
 M

A
P 100 PA

R
C

EL 10

V
-1.1

D
A

T
E

:
D

R
A

W
N

 B
Y

:
JO

B
 #:

SC
A

L
E

:

M
A

R
C

H
 4, 2024

N
A

B
7675

1" = 100'

SC
O

TT M
IC

H
A

E
L SU

M
M

E
R

S
795 SO

U
TH

 H
A

R
PE

TH
 R

O
A

D
D

E
E

D
 B

O
O

K
 492 PA

G
E

 366 R
.O

.C
.C

.
PLA

T B
O

O
K

 13 PA
G

E
 236

12th C
IV

IL D
ISTR

IC
T O

F C
H

E
A

TH
A

M
 C

O
U

N
TY,

TE
N

N
E

SSE
E

PR
O

PE
R

TY M
A

P 100 PA
R

C
E

L 11
ZO

N
IN

G
: A

G
R

IC
U

LTU
R

A
L

19.21 A
C

R
E

S

CONCEPT PLAN FOR RE-ZONING: AGRICULTURAL TO R1

C
E

R
T

IF
IC

A
T

E
 O

F
 A

C
C

U
R

A
C

Y

I H
E

R
E

B
Y

 C
E

R
TIFY

 TH
A

T TH
IS IS A

 C
A

TE
G

O
R

Y
 IV

SU
R

V
E

Y
 A

N
D

 TH
A

T TH
IS M

A
P W

A
S D

R
A

W
N

 U
N

D
E

R
 M

Y
SU

PE
R

V
ISIO

N
, TH

IS SU
R

V
E

Y
 W

A
S D

O
N

E
 IN

C
O

M
PLIA

N
C

E
 W

ITH
 C

U
R

R
E

N
T TE

N
N

E
SSE

E
 M

IN
IM

U
M

STA
N

D
A

R
D

S O
F PR

A
C

TIC
E

, A
N

D
 TH

E
 FO

LLO
W

IN
G

IN
FO

R
M

A
TIO

N
 W

A
S U

SE
D

 TO
 PE

R
FO

R
M

 TH
E

 SU
R

V
E

Y
:

a.
R

E
A

L TIM
E

 K
IN

E
M

A
TIC

 &
 B

A
SE

 SO
K

K
IA

 G
R

X
 3

b.
PO

SITIO
N

A
L A

C
C

U
R

A
C

Y
: 0.05 FE

E
T

c.
D

A
TE

 O
F SU

R
V

E
Y

: 8/22/2023
d.

D
A

TU
M

 / E
PO

C
H

: N
A

D
83 (2011) E

PO
C

H
e.

PU
B

LISH
E

D
 / FIX

E
D

 C
O

N
TR

O
L: TD

O
T C

O
R

S
N

E
TW

O
R

K
f.

G
E

O
ID

 M
O

D
E

L: G
E

O
ID

 12B
g.

C
O

M
B

IN
E

D
 G

R
ID

 FA
C

TO
R

: 0.99993932

0
100

200

U

E

G

W

U
E

EX

□

○

W

S

G

S
F

T

F
MF

M

S

L
E

G
E

N
D

U
N

D
E

R
G

R
O

U
N

D
 E

LE
C

TR
IC

 LIN
E

O
V

E
R

H
E

A
D

 E
LE

C
TR

IC
 LIN

E
TE

LE
C

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
TIO

N
 LIN

E
W

IR
E

 FE
N

C
E

W
O

O
D

 FE
N

C
E

C
H

A
IN

 LIN
K

 FE
N

C
E

W
A

TE
R

 LIN
E

SE
W

E
R

 LIN
E

FO
R

C
E

 M
A

IN
 SE

W
E

R
G

A
S LIN

E
SILT FE

N
C

E
D

R
A

W
N

 B
Y

 D
E

E
D

 (N
O

T SU
R

V
E

Y
E

D
)

W
E

LL
U

TILITY
 PO

LE
G

R
ID

 STA
K

E
 (X

X
) TY

PIC
A

L
E

X
ISTIN

G
 IR

O
N

 PIN
 (U

N
LE

SS N
O

TE
D

)
E

X
ISTIN

G
 C

O
N

C
R

E
TE

 M
O

N
U

M
E

N
T

IR
O

N
 PIN

 SE
T (U

N
LE

SS N
O

TE
D

)
PO

IN
T

B
E

N
C

H
M

A
R

K
FIR

E
 H

Y
D

R
A

N
T

E
LE

C
TR

IC
 M

E
TE

R
W

A
TE

R
 M

E
TE

R
G

A
S M

E
TE

R
SE

W
E

R
 M

A
N

H
O

LE
STO

R
M

 M
A

N
H

O
LE

W
A

TE
R

 SPIG
O

T
W

A
TE

R
 V

A
LV

E
E

LE
C

TR
IC

 TR
A

N
SFO

R
M

E
R

 B
O

X
E

LE
C

TR
IC

 PU
LL B

O
X

SO
IL PIPE

C
LE

A
N

 O
U

T

N

STATE PLANE NORTH
(NAD83  NAVD88)

E

S

W

N

R
E

V
ISIO

N
 #

D
A

T
E

R
A

N
D

O
LPH

 L. C
H

A
PD

E
LA

IN
E

, R
.L.S. # 1444

D
A

TE

7376 W
A

L
K

E
R

 R
O

A
D

,
 F

A
IR

V
IE

W
, T

E
N

N
E

SSE
E

 37062
(615) 799-8104

chapsurveyors@
m

sn.com
R

andolph L
. C

hapdelaine
T

N
 R

.L
.S. #1444

N

SITE MAPN.T.S.

C
H

A
P

D
E

L
A

IN
E

&
 A

S
S

O
C

IA
T

E
S

L
A

N
D

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

IN
G

A
N

L
D

D
S

E
U

R

R

E

V

T

E

SI

YO

GE

R

R

A
G

R
IC

U
LT

U
R

E

C
E

O
C

M
R

M
E

X
V

I C
.

H
L

A
H

PD
PL

EL

O

A

D

I

N

N

A

E

RT

4

E

4

N
4

N
1.

E
O

SS
N

E
E

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 N

O
T

E
S

1.
TH

E
 PU

R
PO

SE
 O

F TH
IS PLA

T IS TO
 R

E
ZO

N
E

 FR
O

M
 A

G
R

IC
U

LTU
R

A
L TO

 R
1.

2.
PO

TA
B

LE
 W

A
TE

R
 FO

R
 PR

O
PE

R
TY

 SE
R

V
E

D
 B

Y
 SE

C
O

N
D

 SO
U

TH
 C

H
E

A
TH

A
M

 U
TILITY

 D
ISTR

IC
T.

3.
TH

E
 SU

B
JE

C
T PR

O
PE

R
TY

 LIE
S IN

 A
 ZO

N
E

 "X
" (A

R
E

A
 O

F M
IN

IM
A

L FLO
O

D
 H

A
ZA

R
D

) A
S SH

O
W

N
 O

N
 FIR

M
M

A
P 47021C

0304E
 D

A
TE

D
 12/22/2016.

4.
A

LL D
ISTA

N
C

E
S SH

O
W

N
 H

E
R

E
O

N
 A

R
E

 B
A

SE
D

 U
PO

N
 A

 FIE
LD

-R
U

N
 SU

R
V

E
Y

 U
SIN

G
 G

PS E
Q

U
IPM

E
N

T TIE
D

TO
 TD

O
T C

O
R

S.
5.

U
TILITIE

S, IF SH
O

W
N

, W
E

R
E

 TA
K

E
N

 FR
O

M
 V

ISIB
LE

 STR
U

C
TU

R
E

S A
T TH

E
 SITE

. V
E

R
IFIC

A
TIO

N
 O

F TH
E

IR
E

X
ISTE

N
C

E
, LO

C
A

TIO
N

, SIZE
, A

N
D

 D
E

PTH
, SH

O
U

LD
 B

E
 M

A
D

E
 B

E
FO

R
E

 M
A

K
IN

G
 D

E
C

ISIO
N

S R
E

G
A

R
D

IN
G

TH
E

M
. A

V
A

ILA
B

ILITY
 O

F SE
R

V
IC

E
 SH

O
U

LD
 B

E
 C

O
N

FIR
M

E
D

 W
ITH

 TH
E

 A
PPR

O
PR

IA
TE

 LO
C

A
L U

TILITY
C

O
M

PA
N

Y
. TE

N
N

E
SSE

E
 O

N
E

 C
A

LL (811) SH
O

U
LD

 B
E

 C
A

LLE
D

 B
E

FO
R

E
 A

N
Y

 C
O

N
STR

U
C

TIO
N

 O
R

 D
IG

G
IN

G
.

6.
TH

IS SU
R

V
E

Y
 W

A
S M

A
D

E
 W

ITH
O

U
T TH

E
 B

E
N

E
FIT O

F A
 TITLE

 R
E

PO
R

T, IT IS TH
E

R
E

FO
R

E
 SU

B
JE

C
T TO

 TH
E

FIN
D

IN
G

S O
F A

N
 A

C
C

U
R

A
TE

 TITLE
 R

E
PO

R
T.

7.
TH

IS PR
O

PE
R

TY
 IS SU

B
JE

C
T TO

 B
O

TH
 R

E
C

O
R

D
E

D
 E

A
SE

M
E

N
TS, A

N
D

 TO
 TH

O
SE

 U
N

K
N

O
W

N
 TO

 TH
IS

SU
R

V
E

Y
O

R
.

8.
PR

O
B

A
B

LE
 W

E
TLA

N
D

 A
R

E
A

S, A
S ID

E
N

TIFIE
D

 E
ITH

E
R

 B
Y

 TH
E

 N
A

TIO
N

A
L W

E
TLA

N
D

S IN
V

E
N

TO
R

Y
 O

R
FO

U
N

D
 A

T TH
E

 TIM
E

 O
F TH

E
 SU

R
V

E
Y

, A
R

E
 SH

O
W

N
 O

N
 TH

IS PLA
T. V

E
R

IFIC
A

TIO
N

 A
N

D
 D

E
LIN

E
A

TIO
N

 O
F

TH
E

 PE
R

IM
E

TE
R

 LO
C

A
TIO

N
 O

F TH
E

SE
 O

R
 A

N
Y

 O
TH

E
R

 SU
C

H
 A

R
E

A
S W

H
IC

H
 M

A
Y

 E
X

IST O
N

 TH
E

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 SH

O
U

LD
 B

E
 M

A
D

E
 B

Y
 TH

E
 O

W
N

E
R

 O
R

 D
E

V
E

LO
PE

R
 TH

R
O

U
G

H
 TH

E
 R

E
LE

V
A

N
T G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T
A

G
E

N
C

Y
 

A
N

D
 

A
 

W
E

TLA
N

D
 

D
E

LIN
E

A
TIO

N
 

C
O

N
SU

LTA
N

T 
PR

IO
R

 
TO

 
IM

PR
O

V
E

M
E

N
T, 

D
E

SIG
N

, 
O

R
D

E
V

E
LO

PM
E

N
T 

O
F 

TH
E

 
PR

O
PE

R
TY

. 
A

T 
LE

A
ST 

SIX
 

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T 

A
G

E
N

C
IE

S 
H

A
V

E
 

R
E

G
U

LA
TIO

N
A

U
TH

O
R

ITY
 O

V
E

R
 TH

E
 U

SE
 O

R
 A

LTE
R

A
TIO

N
 O

F W
E

TLA
N

D
 A

R
E

A
S, A

N
D

 IN
C

LU
D

E
 TH

E
 FO

LLO
W

IN
G

: U
.S.

A
R

M
Y

 C
O

R
PS O

F E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S; U

.S. E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
TA

L PR
O

TE
C

TIO
N

 A
G

E
N

C
Y

; U
.S. FISH

 A
N

D
 W

ILD
LIFE

SE
R

V
IC

E
; TE

N
N

E
SSE

E
 W

ILD
LIFE

 R
E

SO
U

R
C

E
S A

G
E

N
C

Y
; TE

N
N

E
SSE

E
 D

IV
ISIO

N
 O

F W
A

TE
R

 PO
LLU

TIO
N

C
O

N
TR

O
L; TE

N
N

E
SSE

E
 N

A
TU

R
A

L R
E

SO
U

R
C

E
S C

O
N

SE
R

V
A

TIO
N

 SE
R

V
IC

E
.

9.
TO

PO
G

R
A

PH
Y

 D
A

TU
M

 B
A

SE
D

 O
N

 N
A

V
D

 1988 TA
K

E
N

 FR
O

M
 TE

N
N

E
SSE

E
 LID

A
R

 M
A

PPIN
G

 A
N

D
 FIE

LD
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

.

SITE

ANDERSONROAD

SOUTH HARPETH

ROAD

WEBB RIDGE

ROAD

SOUTH
 H

ARPETH

ROAD

SO
U

TH
 H

A
R

PE
TH

R
IV

E
R

P
relim

inary
03/04/2024  11:17:44 A

M

P
relim

inary
03/04/2024  11:17:48 A

M



Re: Letter

John Beam <beam@equituslaw.com>
Tue 3/26/2024 4:16 PM
To: Roy Mack <roy14927@gmail.com>; John Lawless <jlawless@kingstonsprings-tn.gov> 
Cc: Trent Smith <tsmith@southern-tn.com>; tpotter@rprvlaw.com <tpotter@rprvlaw.com>; City Planner
<cityplanner@kingstonsprings-tn.gov>; Lisa Neely <twoks247@gmail.com>; Kyle Schneider <kyle@klobereng.com> 

Roy,

Send your letter by FedX.  Send me a hard copy by regular mail.  

Best regards,
John
615.251.3131

From: Roy Mack <roy14927@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, March 26, 2024 12:49 PM
To: John Lawless <jlawless@kingstonsprings-tn.gov>
Cc: Trent Smith <tsmith@southern-tn.com>; tpo�er@rprvlaw.com <tpo�er@rprvlaw.com>; John Beam
<beam@equituslaw.com>; City Planner <cityplanner@kingstonsprings-tn.gov>; Lisa Neely
<twoks247@gmail.com>; Kyle Schneider <kyle@klobereng.com>
Subject: Le�er
 
March 26, 2024

Kingston Springs Planning Commission
ATTN: John Lawless
396 Spring Street
Kingston Springs, TN 37082

Re: Request for Hearing in Reconsideration of Determination to Deny Renewal of the PUD Plans
for the Roy E. McPherson at The Willows of Kingston Springs (TWOKS), 129 E. Kingston Springs
Road (the “Project”).

Dear Mr. Lawless:

After returning home on February 15 from a trip out of the country, I received a link to the video
of the February 8 planning commission meeting. On February 8, 2024, the Planning Commission
violated its own guidelines by denying the renewal of the PUD Plans for my Project without
giving me notice of the hearing, notice of the issues, and an opportunity to present a plan to
address those issues. With proper notice, the civil engineer and geotechnical engineer for the
Project would have attended the meeting. At the time the renewal for the PUD Plans were denied,
the engineer on the project had not submitted a request for renewal. The purpose of this letter is
to request a reconsideration of this decision and allow the civil engineer to submit a request for
renewal of the PUD Plans. I respectfully request that this item be placed on the next agenda set
for April 11, 2024.



No actual notice of the action was sent to my attention. The only public notice appears to be the
terse Internet message as follows: 

5. Roy E. McPherson – 
The Willows, 129 E. Kingston Springs Rd., Consideration of staff recommendation to deny

renewal of the PUD Plans for the project.

The following background facts are pertinent to this request for reconsideration. In 2017, the
property was purchased. In 2018, the PUD Plans were approved. All approvals were obtained so
that work started not long before being shut down with COVID. 

The following is work completed over the past 24 months (we had a STOP WORK ORDER for six
months of this time):

(1) Advantage Constructions Services built a segmental retaining wall in the rear of Area 3 at a
cost of approximately $100,000.00. The wall was built to Klober Engineering specifications. The
completed wall was inspected and approved by Cheatham County. 
(2) A beautiful serpentine road that leads from Area 1 to Area 3 was completed. The road was
built to Klober Engineering specifications. 
(3) Area 1 where the road is located was solid limestone. An extensive amount of time using the
hoe ram was required to remove the rock. 
(4) Area 3 currently has $85,000 worth of storm sewer pipe lying on the ground ready for
installation. Receipt upon request. 
(5) The utility district (SSCUD) was paid $44,000 for water service. The drawings are completed
and approved for horizontal drilling under E. Kingston Springs Road for water service. 
(6) The drawings for the sewer line that goes under E. Kingston Springs Road are completed and
ready for submission. They were drawn by Klober Engineering. 
(7) The Area 1 site is fully graded and compacted in preparation for construction of two buildings
consisting of 24 apartments. The site was prepared to Klober Engineering specification. 
(8) The Area 3 site is fully graded and compacted in preparation for construction of two buildings
consisting of 16 apartments. The work was performed to Klober Engineering specifications. 
(9) Preparing the soil has required many truck loads of fill dirt. The excavator sifts through the
fill. Bad fill is hauled off. Good fill will be used on the site. Currently area 1 demonstrates this
process of preparing the soil. 
(10) We built an easement road.
(11) We have stored three large mounds of topsoil. Our plans were to use as needed at the end of
construction for landscaping. 
(12) The landscape architect has completed all drawings and they have been turned over to the
city.
(13)  We purchased $29,619.84 of stone from the Rogers Group. We have spread all of it on the
road and other areas of the project. Receipt upon request. 
(14) The surveyor Tommy Edmundson places stakes around the areas we requested. Afterwards
fill dirt is spread and compacted. All fill dirt is placed to Klober Engineering specifications aided
by survey stakes. 



(15) Had a beautiful and colorful brochure made. This gives you a lot of detail of the project. A
copy upon request. 
(16) Had a video made displaying the project in great detail with narration. 
(17) I purchased the domain site twoks.com. These initials stand for THE WILLOWS of
KINGSTON SPRINGS. This domain site will be built at a later date. 
(18) The brochure, video & domain site gives you some idea how we have gone to great lengths
to make this project successful. 
(19) In the past two years five pieces of heavy equipment with one attachment were purchased
specifically for this project. Bought a Caterpillar D6 high sprocket dozer, Caterpillar backhoe,
John Deere front end loader, Hyster sheeps foot roller (for compaction) and one large Caterpillar
excavator with a hoe ram attachment. They have been sitting idle since September 1, 2023. The
operators have moved on to other work. All has been destroyed. Receipts for this equipment are
available upon request. 

Recently, my geotechnical engineer, Trent Smith, called Mrs. Armstrong and requested a meeting
with her, himself, my civil engineer and me. She said NO. He told me she started berating
me.There was no explanation given for the refusal. Comments made to Mr. Smith were
inflammatory assaults on my character rather than helpful concerns for the Project. Many of our
respected local engineers share Mr. Smith’s experience.

TDOT told me that several years ago they sent letters to all municipalities telling them they were
going to widen Kingston Springs Road and that all utilities must move to an area next to but
away from the sidewalk. 

1. Greater Dickson Gas Company complied
2. Dickson Electric complied

      3.    Second South Cheatham Utility District (SSCUD) complied.
      4. The city of Kingston Springs did not comply.

On September 1, 2023 a stop work order was delivered against the Project (the order is dated
August 29, 2023). Very concerned that this stop work order was a pretext for not wanting this
project to connect to the sewer. The Project was bonded and ready to connect to the sewer when
the stop work order was issued. Interestingly, the City of Kingston Springs does not know where
or how deep the sewer line is that runs somewhere along the middle of the highway. It appears
that these sewer issues that the city should know, but doesn’t know, are the precipitating cause
of issuing a stop work order.

The February 8th planning commision meeting led by City Planner, Sharon Armstrong, was very
disappointing and shocking. In addition to lack of actual notice of the meeting, there was no
notice of the alleged infraction and a request for a plan to remediate the issues. If we were
notified of the issues and a plan of action requested, the civil engineer and geo-technical
engineer would have attended with me to defend the Project. There was no representation of my
position. Property rights were taken without due process of law. Many of the comments at the
February 8th meeting were inflammatory, perhaps slanderous. Several of the comments
appeared uninformed. For example, at 21 minutes into the video, Mrs. Armstrong talks about

http://twoks.com/


construction waste and other things on the site. This type of comment has very little to do with
the PUD Plans on the Property. The Commissioners should consider a site visit with my
geotechnical engineer Trent Smith and my civil engineer, Kyle Schneider. They would find an
almost spotless building site. 

At 22 minutes into the video Mrs. Armstong erroneously stated that the people who did the core
drilling used cardboard tubes for samples. This comment has no basis in fact. FYI “thin-walled,
hollow galvanized steel tube, was used to extract a relatively undisturbed soil sample for use in
laboratory tests for compaction. One end of the tube has a chamfered cutting edge; the upper
end includes holes for securing the tube to a drive head.” Though this was an unnecessary
comment, Mr. Smith, the geotechnical engineer for the Project, could have cleared up this and
other questions in the meeting he requested with the city planner. The city planner refused to
meet with both engineers.

At 28 minutes into the video Mrs. Armstrong reports that she and her staff question the
willingness of the developer to move forward and the lack of progress on the Project. Mrs.
Armstrong never made these accusations to any person working on the Project. Once again,
these are unfair, inflammatory comments that are not supported by the facts, and demand a
rebuttal. 

At 36 minutes into the video Ms. Armstrong made the intentionally judgmental comment that the
developer takes three steps back and one step forward and ends up in the same place. At 38
minutes into the video the city planner states that dirt has been pushed around for 13 years. This
is the very type of false information that the Commission should want to correct. This is the type
of unfounded information that makes the Commission’s conclusion arbitrary and capricious.

At 38 minutes into the video Mrs. Armstrong said It is like if you turn a toddler loose on a
bulldozer. It is not going anywhere ending up in the wrong place and the wrong way. These
words are completely insulting and degrading. 

She said dirt pushed around with no goal in mind is baseless. Not only was this comment an
unnecessary personal attack, it indicates the arbitrary and capricious nature of the singling out
this Project rather than simply seeking an explanation with specific issues stated, and requesting
a plan of action.

At 29 minutes into the video Ms. Armstong stated that the plans were submitted in 2013 and
withdrawn, then plans were submitted again in 2016 and withdrawn. In reality, in 2017 the real
property for the project was acquired. From this false information from the city planner, the
Commission followed the recommendation and voted not to renew the PUD Plans. Were the true
facts submitted to the Commission, there would likely be a different vote. Mrs. Armstrong also
misstated the law, and gave no consideration to the COVID shut down that halted the project for
some time. A reconsideration is necessary.

At 37 minutes into the video Mrs. Armstrong stated that the work on the grading and other work
on the site were in opposition to the plans as approved. This statement is disputed. The survey



objectively indicates that the site is built to Klober Engineering specifications. On this site, all fill
was placed in the area staked by the surveyor. 

Without any testimony from any person, at 28 minutes into the video Mrs. Armstrong accused me
of willful violations. Not only is this insulting and inflammatory, it damages my good name and
reputation in the community. At 32 minutes into the video the same innuendo occurs. Mrs.
Armstrong stated that “he did again like he did four years ago.” 
This false accusation goes from a willful violator to a habitual offender. Four years ago, an issue
was pointed out and quickly resolved. 

One year ago, when completing Area 3 of the Project, it was apparent that the walking trail west
of the building pads was too steep for older folks or those with special needs. Fill dirt was added
to the walking trail to make it more user friendly. The civil engineer advised us to proceed with
the reminder that later the area must be surveyed, drawings made, and sent to TDEC. These
steps were taken because there were no buildings involved. Without requesting or considering
an explanation, on August 30, 2023 Mrs Armstrong overreacted. She immediately closed down
Areas 2 and 3. We contacted the surveyor immediately. He surveyed the area in question. The
surveyor then sent his drawings to civil engineer Kyle Schneider. Mr. Schneider made new
drawings of the area and immediately sent them to TDEC. The Project is now in full compliance. 

From the video of February 8th, it appears that the fill on the walking trail was an arbitrary pretext
to shut down this project. From the perspective of the developer and the Project, the city planner
likely perpetrated a scheme to stop this Project. After significant effort, everything was lined up
to start the horizontal drilling under E. Kingston Springs Road in September 2023. All necessary
parties were lined up for the connection when the city planner stopped the Project. A few weeks
earlier, in August 2023, the city required a bond for drilling under the road. Mrs. Armstrong was
aware that drilling was scheduled to start in September 2023. During the bond discussion, I
perceived that as soon as the bond was purchased, she would close the project down. I told my
operators of this fear. Sadly, this fear became reality. I told her closing me down would destroy
my project and would lose my operators and people I have contracted with to start drilling on the
highway. I begged her not to close me down. 

Following a hard rain the day before, on August 30, 2023 the equipment was being serviced since
it was too wet to operate. The city planner arrived on site. She appeared boiling mad. The job
foreman went with the city planner to Area 3 where the extra fill was placed. She came back and
asked me about the retaining wall and storm sewer pipe. Next, she falsely characterized water
puddles from the rain as “Blue Streams.” This was totally false. TDEC previously sent a letter
stating there were no blue streams on the property. The next question was out of place. She
persistently and boldly kept asking “Where did you bury the house?” At this time I was getting
very nervous about the situation and felt things were out of control. There was originally a one
room block house when property was first purchased. It was hauled off years ago. Afterwards,
her husband privately told me he was very concerned about her.

She issued a stop work order on areas 3 and 2. There was never a list of issues presented. There
was no request for a plan of action. There was no vote or hearing. As she anticipated, all
contracts and permits for horizontal drilling to connect to the sewer would soon expire. She



appeared not to care. The following contracts, agreements  & permits that have now expired are:
(1) the permit for horizontal drilling under a Tennessee Highway from TDOT, (2) the permit from
TDEC, (3) the contract with Hunter Excavating & Road Boring, (4) the agreement with Gavin
Barnes to dig the launching pits and receiving pits, (5) the contract with Marty Mangrum to install
pipe and spacers inside the steel casings, (6) the contract with Hayes Pipe Company to deliver
pipe and steel casings for the Project, (7) the agreement with Tim Brasher to supervise the
horizontal drilling, (8) the contract for water with Second South Cheatham Utility District
(SSCUD), 8) the agreement to install a gas line with Greater Dickson Gas Company.

When I thought things couldn't get any worse this happened: Mrs. Armstrong told me that I had
to get core samples on my building site. She also told me the STOP WORK ORDER would stay in
effect until this is completed. I called three geotechnical engineers and they all told me it would
take approximately six months to a year to complete it. They were all backlogged. They all said
they could perform the work while we were actively working on the project. At this very moment I
knew if I could not get Mrs. Armstrong to reconsider closing me down this project would be
destroyed. I was desperate. I called Mrs. Armstrong and told her about the situation. She started
berating me. I could not believe her words. I told her about my workers and all the people I had
contracted with. I felt she was enjoying this moment. At this moment my world came CRASHING
DOWN. Talking with my equipment operators afterwards was one of the worst days of my life.
They did not understand. All I could do was to say I am sorry. 

The city planner chose a harsh remedy in stopping the Project. There were possibly no legitimate
concerns. From the owner’s perspective, there was no concern stating that substantial
relationship to public health, safety, or welfare. Our local code provides for a process, stated as
follows:

The town commission shall serve upon the landowner, by certified mail, written notice to
comply. The notice shall set forth the measures needed to comply. In determining the
measures required, the commission shall take into consideration the technology and
quantity of work required. Within thirty (30) days after such notice, the town commission
shall hold a public hearing, during which the landowner shall be allowed to participate, to
determine whether and to what extent corrective measures are necessary. Upon such a
finding by the town commission, the landowner shall develop and submit a plan for such
correction within thirty (30) days thereafter. Upon approval of the plan by the town
engineer or his designee, the landowner shall have forty-five (45) days to implement the
plan. Failure to submit a plan as required shall constitute a violation of this chapter. (Code, § 14-
506)



The local ordinance gives the landowner due process of law. The city planner wanted to avoid
due process of law to prevent the Project from connecting to the sewer. Because this Project
appears personal to the city planner, perhaps one or a small group of Commissioners will meet
with the geotechnical engineer and the civil engineer on the Project. The geotechnical engineer
believes any issue can be explained in short order. Though his compaction report on the Project
is not perfect, compaction was 95%. These engineers believe a Commissioner will quickly
recognize that the Project is far better than presented. Mrs. Armstrong has made this a personal
attack, choosing to make issues out of minor, seemingly arbitrary items. Items that the engineers
and a concerned Commissioner can quickly resolve.

All of this has been embarrassing to me and my family. I am sure some of you are aware this
situation has gotten on social media. 

I love Kingston Springs. Hopefully, any perceived problems can be communicated and resolved
so the Project can move forward.

If my request is granted, my geotechnical engineer, civil engineer and I will be in attendance. 

Sincerely,

Roy McPherson
615-418-9941
roy14927@gmail.com

mailto:roy14927@gmail.com

	MICHAEL_SCOTT_SUMMERS-RE-ZONE-SKETCH (2).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	RE-ZONE



